
_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 1 of 9 

City Council Minutes 
City of Palmer, Alaska 

                      Regular Meeting 
January 24, 2006 

 
A. CALL TO ORDER 
 
A regular meeting of the Palmer City Council was held on January 24, 2006, at 7 p.m. in the 
council chambers, Palmer, Alaska. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel called the meeting to order at 7 p.m.  
 
B. ROLL CALL 
 
Comprising a quorum of the Council, the following were present: 
 

 Brad Hanson   Tony Pippel 
 Larry Hill  Kathrine Vanover 
 Jim Wood   
    
Also in attendance were the following: 
  

 Tom Healy, City Manager 
 Jack Snodgrass, City Attorney 

Janette Bower, City Clerk 
 
C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
The Pledge of Allegiance was led by Council Member Vanover. 
 
D. APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
The agenda was approved as presented. 

1. Approval of Consent Agenda 
2. Minutes of Previous Meetings– the minutes were amended and approved. 

a. January 10, 2006, Regular Meeting 
b. January 17, 2006, Special Meeting 

 
E. COMMUNICATIONS AND APPEARANCE REQUESTS 
 
F. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Joy Davidson described the definition of obscene and questioned the distribution of pornography 
within the City of Palmer. She asked of the reason for ordinances which are not enforced and 
stated that something must be done. Ms. Davidson referred the City to the Supreme Court’s 
definition of obscene and three thronged approach regarding the definition. She stated that the 
City has been given means of enforcement through the Supreme Court definition. 
 
Mimi Pippel spoke on behalf of the Palmer Arts Council. She provided an explanation of the 
Council’s not for profit status. She explained the mission to provide nurture and encouragement 
of free expression through the arts. Ms. Pippel the role of the board of directors. She expanded 
on the process of solicitation of gifts and desired funding levels. She explained the intent of the 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 2 of 9 

funds, stating that the first major purchase would be risers. Ms. Pippel requested $5,000 from the 
City for the purchase.  
 
Rebecca Gallagher spoke on the issue of pornography within the City. She voiced her agreement 
regarding the issue of enforcement, stating that the material is bad for the community and family 
life.  
 
Richard Hand introduced himself as a new Palmer resident and thanked the council for making 
the City a nice place to live. He voiced his opposition to the lack of code enforcement regarding 
pornography. He spoke of the long list of crimes surrounding the issue. Mr. Hand expanded on 
harm to the community and encouraged the council to enforce the language within the Code.  
 
G. PUBLIC HEARINGS 
 
Item 1 – Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 06-001: Amending Title 15 (Buildings and 
Construction) of the Palmer Municipal Code to Provide for Updated Building Code 
Requirements (IM 06-001) 
MOVED BY: Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

To adopt ordinance no. 06-001 

 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel opened the public hearing for ordinance no. 06-001. There being no 
persons who wished to testify, the public hearing was closed and the matter was brought back 
before the council. 
 
Council Member Hanson asked for an explanation of table 3-A and the fees increase. City 
Manager Healy explained the table’s current existence in code. Council Member Hanson asked 
Building Inspector David Meneses of the age of the existing fee structure. Mr. Meneses 
explained the new fee schedule, involved formula and origination from the 1997 code. He 
highlighted the 5% fee increase. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel asked if the average building fee would increase at 5%. Mr. Meneses 
stated that it was so.  

 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     

 
Item 2 – Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 06-002: Amending Palmer Municipal Code Section 
2.04.110; Specifically to Amend the Order of Business for Regular City Council Meetings (IM 
06-002) 
MOVED BY: Vanover 
SECONDED BY: Hanson 

To adopt ordinance no. 06-002 

 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel opened the public hearing for ordinance no. 06-002.  There being no 
persons who wished to testify, the public hearing was closed and the matter was brought back 
before the council. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel spoke in favor of the amendment, explaining the Mayor’s current 
method of reporting and need for the additional format. 
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 3 of 9 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     

 
H. BIDS 
 
I. ACTION MEMORANDUMS 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 06-002: Authorize City Manager to Assign Lease 05-2 from 
Palmer Hangars LLC to Palmer Hangars Association 
MOVED BY: Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Vanover 

To authorize the city manager to assign lease 05-2 from 
Palmer Hangars LLC to Palmer Hangars Association 

 
Clerk’s note: Attorney Sally Kusko, council for the City of Palmer was in attendance by 
teleconference. 
 
Attorney Sally Kusko spoke of the common interest community and co-op created by Palmer 
Hangar LLC. She expressed the need for the real estate to be subject to a recorded declaration 
which specifies the property’s use. She described the necessary formation of an Association and 
described the interest of individual unit owners gained by a proprietary lease. Ms. Kusko stated 
that the language is under Uniform Common Interest Ownership Act. She stated because the City 
owns the airport, the City must consent to the declaration and the transfer of the lease to the 
Association.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore asked of any possible ramifications – both pro and con. Ms. Kusko spoke of 
positive airport development and use of airport property. She described the downside of 
additional record keeping activities involving six individual units with aircraft and related 
activities rather one. She stated that the transfer mechanism is the only way for a developer to 
create the development.  
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel asked of Ms. Kusko’s experience with these types of matters. Ms. 
Kusko explained her representation of Merrill Field and stated that approximately ten 
developments of the same nature had been completed there.  
 
Ms. Kusko stated that there were three issues in which the City and Developer were not in 
agreement. She expanded on the issue of releasing the developer from lease liability and 
cautioned the council from doing so. She highlighted the second issue regarding insurance. Ms. 
Kusko described the provision to require the unit owners to carry $300,000 in insurance for non-
commercial storage of aircraft related activities and $500,000 for those in aircraft business 
related activities. She explained the identical requirements at Merrill Field and the request of 
Palmer Hangar LLC to be exempt from the insurance requirements. Ms. Kusko highlighted the 
third issue regarding the payment of attorney fees by Palmer Hangar LLC and the approximate 
amount of between $4,500 and $5,000. 
 
Ms. Kusko explained the recommendation to amend the documents so that Palmer Hangar LLC 
is not released from liability.   
 
Council Member Vanover asked that the changes be made as requested by the Attorney. Council 
Member Wood spoke of the need to retain the developer liability.  



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 4 of 9 

Clerk’s note: the council consented to suspend the rules to hear from the owners of Palmer 
Hangars LLC.  
 
Mr. William Fordham spoke of previous conversations held with Ms. Jane Dale and the lack of 
identification of a liability trail. He stated that the City has asked Palmer Hangar LLC to 
maintain liability long after the units are sold. Mr. Angel spoke of the responsibility of Palmer 
Hangar Association to track the additional owners and aircraft. He stated that additional costs 
would not be incurred by the City for the additional requirements. Ms. Kusko spoke to the City’s 
need to document proprietary leases and the need to consent to the action. She explained the 
City’s process to track the aircraft and emergency information.  
 
Mr. Angel asked of the need for Palmer Hangar LLC’s continued provision of insurance after the 
units have been sold. Ms. Kusko expanded on the 40 year lease and liability language which do 
not release the lessee from liability. Ms. Kusko stated that as a developer, the developer takes a 
stronger interest to ensure the project’s success and should remain “on the hook”. Mr. Fordham 
stated that once the units have been sold, they have no intention of continued involvement.  
 
Mr. Angel spoke of non-disclosure by City representatives and the on-going changes and 
demands. Ms. Kusko explained that the City was not attempting to block the assignment of the 
lease and further explained the language which indicates that they will not be released from the 
liability issues surrounding the lease once the assignment has been completed. 
 
Mr. Fordham stated their attorney’s advisement to not accept the documents as written. He 
expanded on the redundancy of the insurance requirements. He stated that the original lease 
language does not state the additional requirements. Ms. Kusko explained the identical 
requirements at Merrill Field. She stated that the language has been reviewed by the 
Municipality of Anchorage Risk Management Department and found to be adequate. Mayor Pro-
Tempore Pippel spoke of ownership of individual lease holders and each owner’s different 
insurable interests.  
 
Mr. Fordham stated that they were not informed of their liability for the attorney fees. Attorney 
Snodgrass stated that Ms. Kusko is looking out for the City’s best interest and it is not the other 
attorney’s job to do so. He expanded on the incurrence of fees which are not otherwise incurred 
through the airport enterprise fund. Mr. Fordham stated that the action has been done without 
their knowledge or consent.  
 
Jodie Fondy explained she and her husband’s partnership in Palmer Hangar LLC. She stated that 
when they became involved with the Palmer Airport, it was at the request of the City through the 
RFP process for economic development. She expanded on their efforts to further economic 
development at the Palmer Airport and stated that their attempts to do so were being penalized.  
 
Council Member Hanson asked for clarification regarding for the need for continued insurance 
requirements from the developer. Ms. Kusko stated that the developer would not be required to 
carry insurance but continues to remain liable under the lease. She stated that should the 
Association fail to pay rent, the City may pursue the developer for those costs. Mayor Pro-
Tempore Pippel asked of the Developer’s release from liability from accidents, injuries on the 
property but not released from liability for paying rent. Ms. Kusko responded by stating that 
through the lease assignment, the Association becomes the tenant and will be required to meet 
the insurance requirements. She stated that the assignment does not relieve the Developer from 
liability such as lease default and losses which exceed all of the combined insurances.  
 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 5 of 9 

Council Member Hanson asked of the previous lease assignments and their insurance 
requirements. Attorney Snodgrass voiced his understanding that the City has not released the 
primary lease holder of any previous lease assignments.  
 
Council Member Wood asked what would happen if the Association dissolved. Ms. Kusko 
explained the default procedures which would include retaking possession and taking of 
outstanding monies that are owed. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel spoke of the appropriateness of the insurance requirement. He stated 
that he would be willing to split the difference on the attorney fees. 
 
Council Member Hanson voiced his agreement with Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel regarding the 
insurance requirements. He stated that the attorney fees should be paid out of the enterprise fund 
and explained the attorney fees as a cost of doing business.  
 

Primary Amendment #1 to Main Motion 
Moved by: Hanson 
Seconded by: Vanover 

To authorize the City Manager to enter into the 
Assignment and Amendment of the Palmer 
Municipal Airport Lease Agreement 05-02 
subject to the following conditions: 
1.  The Assignment and Amendment of Palmer 

Municipal Airport Lease Agreement No. 05-
02 is changed so that Palmer Hangars, LLC, 
is not released from liability under the Lease 
and that the City’s attorney confirms the 
change; 

2. Individual members—cooperative owners 
(Proprietary Lessees)--must provide 
adequate liability insurance (currently 
$300,000 if no business use and $500,000 if 
business use) that names the City as an 
additional insured, which insurance is in 
addition to the insurance required of Palmer 
Hangars under the Lease;  

3.  City Manager is authorized to execute to the 
consent to establishment of leasehold 
common interest community which 
authorizes the recording of the declaration of 
the Palmer Hangar Co-op. 

 
 

Vote:  Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     

 
VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion carried by unanimous voice vote. 

Yes: No: 
Vanover  Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 6 of 9 

Item 2 – Action Memorandum 06-004: Authorize City Manager to Purchase a Vehicle for the 
Palmer Police Department Using a Joint Purchase Arrangement Under the State of Alaska 
Contract with Nye Ford 
MOVED BY: Vanover 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To authorize the city manager to purchase a vehicle for 
the Palmer Police Department using a joint purchase 
arrangement under the State of Alaska contract with 
Nye Ford 

 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     

 
J. UNFINISHED BUSINESS  
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 05-123: Authorize City Manager to Amend the City of Palmer 
Utility Service Regulations to Include Reduced Utility Fees for Disconnected Water Service 
MOVED BY: Pippel 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To authorize the city manager to amend the City of 
Palmer utility service regulations to include reduced 
utility fees for disconnected water service 

 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel spoke of the utility rate study process and City Manager Healy’s 
instruction to the contractor to include the cost of the fixed rate vs. variable rates. Mayor Pro-
Tempore Pippel stated that the vacation rates should reflect the fixed costs and expanded on the 
value of connecting to a water system. He spoke of the intent of the utility study and forthcoming 
recommendations for a rate increase.  
 
Council Member Wood asked when the rate study would be complete. City Manager Healy 
explained the draft study and the meeting to be held on February 9 to finalize the study. Council 
Member Wood voiced his favor of postponement until after finalization of the documents. 
 
Council Member Hill supported the postponement of the issue.  
 

Primary Amendment #1 to Main Motion 
Moved by: Vanover 
Seconded by: Wood 

To postpone indefinitely 

 
City Manager Healy spoke of the discussions held regarding the disconnection of 
service and continued service when making the distinction regarding the fixed 
costs.  
 
Council Member Hanson voiced his opposition to turning off water to determine a 
vacation rate and commented on the consequences for boiler systems without 
water. He spoke of the Manager’s proposal regarding the fixed costs and stated 
that the fixed costs should not be identified for establishing a vacation rate.  

 

Vote:  Motion  
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 7 of 9 

K. NEW BUSINESS 
 
Item 1 – Action Memorandum 06-005: Mayor’s Appointments to the Airport Advisory 
Commission 
MOVED BY: Hanson 
SECONDED BY: Wood 

To confirm the recommendations of Mayor Combs 

 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel announced Mayor Combs recommendations and asked for the 
council confirmation of the appointments. Those recommendations were: 
 

 George Angus – term ending 1/31/08 
 Peter Brown – term ending 1/31/08 
 Jeff Helmericks – term ending 1/31/08 
 Allan Linn – term ending 1/31/08 
 Garret Cost – term ending 1/31/07 

 

VOTE ON MAIN MOTION: Motion passed by unanimous voice vote. 
Yes: No: 

Vanover Wood Hill    
Hanson Pippel     

 
L. CITY MANAGER’S REPORT 
 
City Manager Healy reported on the following items: 

• Utility Rate Study; 
• Comprehensive Plan – will be before the council next month; 
• Received proposal from the Palmer Museum of History and Art; 
• S. Chugach – bids open the first of February; 
• University property map. 

 
M. CITY CLERK’S REPORT 
 
Ms. Bower reported on the following items: 

• January 31 special meeting; 
• Direct deposit information. 

 
N. RECORD OF ITEMS PLACED ON THE TABLE 
 
The following items were placed on the table: 

• Direct Deposit information; 
• Map of Airport University property; 
• Building Permit Fee Schedule; 
• Letter from Palmer Hangars LLC; 
• Draft #3, Assignment and Amendment of Palmer Municipal Airport Lease Agreement 

No. 05-02. 
 
O. AUDIENCE PARTICIPATION 
 
Ralph Kettler spoke of the obscenity language contained within the code and asked the council to 
enforce the language. He stated that he spoke with the owners of Movie Gallery who in turn 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 8 of 9 

stated that they would comply with all laws. Mr. Kettler spoke of the code language as being 
prior to the invention of videos. 
 
Russ Grandel spoke to the obscenity law stating the appropriateness of the law. He stated that the 
City should enforce all of their laws because if the laws were not enforced, doors will be opened. 
 
John Doak voiced his agreement with those who spoke before him regarding the obscenity law.  
 
Nancy Homstad asked the council to uphold the obscenity law. She spoke of language under the 
First Amendment which does not uphold free speech regarding obscenity and stated that if the 
law is let go, more types of obscene actions may occur in the City. She stated that the citizens 
like Palmer and desire to keep it a clean city. She stated that she does not believe that the 
materials are a free market opportunity and voiced her agreement with the Supreme Court 
decision regarding lack of protection for the materials. 
 
P. COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 
Council Member Wood spoke of the obscenity law and the vagueness of the language. He 
stated that currently, it is impossible to enforce the law as written. Council Member Wood 
suggested the City Attorney begin researching the laws to either enforce or rescind the language. 
He quoted a Congress person by stating “I do not know how to define obscenity but will know it 
when I see it”. He stated that it was the opinion that most people hold. Council Member Wood 
stated that a good start would be to complete research to define obscenity.   
 
Council Member Hill concurred with Council Member Wood. Council Member Hill spoke of 
the survey work in the Palmer area. He explained the contour mapping project and the necessary 
completion date of February. He stated that following the mapping project, right-of-way 
identification would begin. Council Member Hill stated that the project is a on a fast track basis. 
He invited persons with knowledge of the area to contact the project manager with any 
information. 
 
Council Member Hanson voiced his concurrence with Council Member Wood regarding 
definition and clarification of the obscenity law. Council Member Hanson voiced his pleasure 
with the progress of the S. Chugach project and asked that an update regarding the Urban 
Revitalization project be provided at the February 28 meeting.  
 
Council Member Vanover applauded the audience for their participation and stand on the 
obscenity language. She recognized that taking stand was not always the popular thing to do and 
concurred with the audience. Council Member Vanover stated that while the current obscenity 
language may be unenforceable, she voiced her desire to not have the issue be “sloughed off”. 
She stated that the language was placed in the code by the City’s forefathers with good reason. 
She stated that she will take a stand and finds the materials obscene and does not want it in the 
community. 
 
Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel voiced his concurrence with Council Member’s Wood and Hill. 
He stated that he is not in favor of the materials but doesn’t know if the language is enforceable. 
He stated that he does not want to commit the City to litigation expense and spoke of Attorney 
direction to research the matter. Attorney Snodgrass suggested that the matter be placed on an 
agenda for further discussion to meet the entire Open Meetings Act requirements. Council 
consented to place the item on the next regular meeting agenda. Mayor Pro-Tempore Pippel 



_____________________________________________________________________________________________ 
City of Palmer, Alaska                                                                                          January 24, 2006 
                                                                                                                                Page 9 of 9 

highlighted his attendance at the grand opening of the new hospital and announced his February 
travel plans.  
 
Q.  ADJOURNMENT 
 
With no further business before the Council, the meeting adjourned at 8:50 p.m.  
 
APPROVED THIS 14th day of February, 2006. 
 
 

____________________________________ 
       Anthony J. Pippel, Mayor Pro-Tempore 
 
____________________________________ 
Janette M. Bower, City Clerk  
 

jbower
signature

jbower
signature


	City of Palmer, Alaska

